
 

Wednesday, March 13, 2024 
In-person with a virtual option 

Join by computer:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85855172282 

Meeting ID  858 5517 2282 
or Call 646-931-3860,85855172282#  

2024 Executive Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Chairman Jay McCosh will convene a meeting of the Centralina Executive Board on Wednesday, March 13, 
2024, at 5:00 pm. The meeting will be held in person at the Centralina office (located at 10735 David Taylor 
Dr., Suite 250, Charlotte, NC 28262) with a virtual attendance option via Zoom. 

Time Item Presenter 

5:00 p.m. Call to Order      Jay McCosh 
Roll Call      
Pledge of Allegiance 
Amendments to the Agenda (if any) 

Consent Items: 
Consent agenda items may be considered in one motion and without discussion except for those items 
removed by a Board Member. 
5:05 p.m. 
Item 1 
5 minutes 
Pages 4 - 7 

Approval of January 10, 2024, Executive Board Meeting 
Minutes 
Approval of January 10, 2024, Executive Board Meeting 
Minutes. The minutes from the January 10, 2024, meeting has 
been distributed to all members of the Executive Board and 
should be approved if correct.  

Action/Recommendation:  
Motion to approve the January 10, 2024, Executive Board 
meeting minutes.  

Jay McCosh 

Item 2 
Pages 9-12 

Resolution of Support for NC Department of 
Transportation FY2025 Public Transportation Program 
Funding 
As part of the implementation of CONNECT Beyond’s 
recommendations, the Centralina Regional Council 
(“Centralina”) is pursuing continuing funding to support the 
development and establishment of a regional transportation 
demand management (TDM) program. This grant application 
requires an organization’s Board to adopt the attached 
resolution, which ensures the 50% local match funding is 
programmed and available for TDM activities. Centralina will 
apply for funds by March 29, 2024, and will request $20,000 in 
NC DOT funds to be matched with $20,000 in local funds. 
These funds will support efforts to establish and build regional 
recognition of Centralina’s regional TDM program, the first-
ever regional program for the greater Charlotte area. 

Action/Recommendation: 
Motion to adopt the attached TDM Grant Resolution and 
affirm $20,000 in local match funds for Centralina’s NC 
DOT TDM grant in FY2025. 

Jay McCosh 

Regular Agenda Items 
5:10 p.m. 
Item 3 
5 minutes 

Centralina Spotlight 
Centralina Area Agency on Aging staff will provide a short 
video about our work in the region. related to providing 

Cindy Kincaid 

https://www.connect-beyond.com/plan/all-recommendations/


 

Wednesday, March 13, 2024 
In-person with a virtual option 

Join by computer:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85855172282 

Meeting ID  858 5517 2282 
or Call 646-931-3860,85855172282#  

2024 Executive Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Time Item Presenter 

Pages 14-16 services and support to older and disabled adults and their 
caregivers.  
through the Family Caregiver Support Program (FCSP). 

Action/Recommendation: 
Receive as information and Board Feedback. 

5:15 p.m. 
Item 4 
10minutes 
Pages 18-20 

Executive Board Orientation & 2024 Forecast
The Executive Board will participate in an interactive session 
to meet new representatives and discuss the forecast of 2024 
meeting topics. 

Action/Recommendation: 
Receive as information. 

Geraldine Gardner 

5:25 p.m. 
Item 5 
15 minutes 
Pages 22-86 

Timber Road Extension Grant Agreement
The Executive Board is asked to approve the acceptance of a 
$15,000,000 grant directed to Centralina by the NC General 
Assembly in the 2023 Appropriations Act and the Committee 
Report. 

Action/Recommendation: 
Motion to accept the $15 million grant from the State of 
North Carolina for the purposes outlined in the attached 
scope of work. 

Geraldine Gardner 

5:40 p.m. 
Item 6 
15 minutes 
Pages 88 

State Relations Update 
The Board will receive an update on Centralina’s state 
government engagement activities. 

Action/Recommendation: 
Receive as information and provide feedback as requested. 

Kelly Weston 

5:55 p.m. 
Item 7 
15 minutes 
Pages 91-94 

In-Focus Discussion: Regional Infrastructure 
Innovation/CPRG Briefing 
In our growing region, continuous innovation is needed to 
ensure that our physical infrastructure can continue to meet 
our needs. Centralina is leading several initiatives aimed at 
helping our members take advantage of historic funding 
opportunities through innovative financing, education, 
technology, partnerships, and regional cooperation. 

Action/Recommendation 
Receive as information 

Michelle Nance 

6:10 p.m. 
5 minutes 

Comments from the Executive Board and Centralina Staff Board Members and 
Staff 

6:15 p.m. 
5 minutes 

Comments from the Executive Director Geraldine Gardner 

6:20 p.m. 
5 minutes 

Comments from the Chair Jay McCosh 

6:25 p.m. Adjournment Jay McCosh 



 

Wednesday, March 13, 2024 
In-person with a virtual option 

Join by computer:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85855172282 

Meeting ID  858 5517 2282 
or Call 646-931-3860,85855172282#  

2024 Executive Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Time Item Presenter 

Centralina Regional Council complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability. Centralina Regional Council will make reasonable 
accommodations in all programs/services to enable participation by an individual with a disability who 
meets essential eligibility requirements. Centralina Regional Council’s programs will be available in the 
most integrated setting for each individual. If any accommodation is necessary for participation, please 
contact the Clerk to the Board, 10735 David Taylor Drive, Charlotte, NC 28262, phone (704) 348-2728. Please 
allow 72 hours advance notice for preparation.  Visit our website:  www.centralina.org.  



Item 1 

4



 

Executive Board Meeting Minutes 
January 10, 2024 

Officers Present Board Members 
Present 

Board Members 
Not Present 

Centralina Staff and 
Guests Present 

Jay McCosh, Vice Chairman 
Jarvis Woodburn, Secretary 

Patty Crump 
Martha Sue Hall 
Darrell Hinnant 
Gene Houpe 
Corinthia Lewis-
Lemon 
Tony Long 
Elaine Powell 
Shawn Rush 
David Scholl 
Lynn Shue 
Jennifer Teague 

Dante’ Anderson  
Cathy Davis 
Kevin Demeny 
Brian Helms 
Bob Hovis 
Jamie Lineberger 
Jerry Oxsher 
Mark Loden 
Jennifer Stepp 

Narissa Claiborne 
Geraldine Gardner 
Michelle Nance 
Kelly Weston 
Sherika Rich 
Denise Strosser 
Jason Wager 
Venecia White 
Christina Danis 
Sherika Rich 
Lenessa Hawkins 

Guests 
Leslie Mozingo 

Call to Order 
Vice Chair, Jay McCosh, called the meeting to order. 

Narissa Claiborne, Boards Administrator, called the roll and noted a quorum present. 

Moment of Silence 
Vice Chair, Jay McCosh directed the Board and staff to stand for the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of the November 8, 2023, Executive Board Meeting Minutes
2. FY23-24 Budget Amendment
3. Request for approval for NC Division of Aging and Adult Services Home

Improvement Grant Funds
4. Authorization of Charlotte Regional Transportation Planning Organization

(CRTPO) Contract for COORDINATE Our Future Project

Vice Chairman, Jay McCosh called for a motion to approve the January 10, 2024, 
Consent Agenda 

Commissioner David Scholl approved the Motion. Commissioner Tony Long seconded. The 
motion passed unanimously.  

No Amendments to the Agenda. 
No amendments to the agenda were noted. 

5



Regular Agenda Items 

5. PY 2024-2025 Centralina Board Forecast
Centralina Executive Director Geraldine Gardner shared with the Executive the 
Centralina 2024-25 Board Forecast. Highlighting to the Board special events and 
initiatives. The Board was encouraged to ask questions and give feedback as it 
pertained to the Board Forecast. 

6. Federal and State Action Agenda Update and Discussion
Ms. Kelly Weston, Centralina’s Government Affairs & Member Engagement
Coordinator, and Leslie Mozingo, of Strategics Consultants, shared with the Board an
update on the Raleigh and Federal Relations. Ms. Mozingo also highlighted the
November-December 2023 Performance Report. Chairman Compton made a motion to
approve both the Strategics Consulting performance reports for November through
December 2023 & the 2024 Federal Action Plan.

Mayor Pro Tem Martha Sue Hall of Albemarle made the motion to approve the
Strategics Consulting performance reports for November through December 2023 &
the 2024 Federal Action Plan. Commissioner Patty Crump seconded the motion. The
motion passed unanimously.

7. Annual Placeholder operating and pass-through budget proposals for Fiscal
Year 2024-25
Denise Strosser, Centralina Finance Director shared the Annual Placeholder operating
and pass-through budget proposals for Fiscal Year 2024-25. Vice Chair McCosh called
for a Motion to recommend the proposed FY24-2025 operating and passthrough
placeholder budget ordinances for $9,025,500 and $17,308,900, respectfully, and the
membership dues assessment of $0.24 per capita with no minimal assessment per
member.

Mayor Pro Tem of Albemarle made the motion. Alderman Shawn Rush seconded the
motion. The motion passed unanimously.

8. Nominating Committee Update
The nominating committee, including Mayor Pro Tem Martha Sue Hall, Alderman
Shawn Rush of East Spencer, and Council member Crystal Buchaluk of Indian Trail
provided and updated the Board on its activities in advance of the February 21, Annual
Board of Delegates meeting. The Committee shared with the Board their strategy, key
factors, including succession planning, and their implementation of candidate
interviews. The Committee also shared with the Board their slate of nominees for the
2024 Officer Election.

9. Advancing the Plan Committee Update
Centralina Planning Director, Jason Wager Centralina staff provided key updates on the 
CONNECT Beyond project to keep the Executive Board apprised of current 
implementation activities, with a focus on achievements and next steps for the 
Advancing the Plan Committee, Mayor Hinnant of Kannapolis also highlighted the 
Advancing the Plan progress. The Board asked to be updated regularly on the 
Committee’s initiatives. 

10. Community Economic Development Update on Regional Projects
Centralina Economic Development Director, Christina Danis updated the Board on the 
Community Economic Development special projects that are underway in the 
Centralina Region and its progress. 

6



Comments from the Executive Board and Centralina Staff 
None. 
Comments from the Executive Director 
None. 
Comments from the Chair 

• January 18 -10 am-11:30 am - Small Towns Peer-to-Peer: Strategic Planning
• February 8th & 13th - 10 am-3 pm - FEMA Public Assistance Program
• February 15- 10 am-11:30 am- The Role of Childcare in the NC Economy Forum
• Expressed gratitude to the Board and to the Centralina staff

Adjournment 
With no further business to be discussed, Chairman Compton adjourned the meeting at 
6:37 p.m. 

7



Item 2 

8



Template Revised August 2023 

Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting 
Date: 3/13/24 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: X Regular: 

Submitting Person: Reaghan Murphy Presentation 
Time: 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Jason Wager 

Phone Number: 704-348-2707
Email: jwager@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Reaghan Murphy 
Phone Number: 704-348-2731
Email: rmurphy@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Planning Department 
Head Approval: Jason Wager 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda: Resolution of Support for NC Department of 
Transportation FY2025 Public Transportation Program Funding 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 
As part of the implementation of CONNECT Beyond’s recommendations, Centralina Regional 
Council (“Centralina”) is pursuing continuing funding to support the development and 
establishment of a regional transportation demand management (TDM) program. This grant 
application requires an organization’s Board to adopt the attached resolution, which ensures the 
50% local match funding is programmed and available for TDM activities. Centralina will apply for 
funds by March 29, 2024, and will request $20,000 in NC DOT funds to be matched with $20,000 
in local funds. These funds will support efforts to establish and build regional recognition of 
Centralina’s regional TDM program, the first-ever regional program for the greater Charlotte area. 

Background & Basis of Recommendations:  
In October 2021, Centralina Regional Council adopted the CONNECT Beyond Regional Mobility 
Plan and Recommendations.  Since then, the project team has been working on a number of 
implementation activities, including the development of a regional transportation demand 
management (TDM) plan and program.    

TDM is a set of strategies that seek to change how and when people travel. The goal of TDM is 
to reduce the number of people driving private vehicles in general but particularly during peak 
travel hours. To date, TDM programs in the Charlotte region have been focused on 
Mecklenburg County and limited in scope and duration.  CONNECT Beyond recommendations 
identified Centralina as the lead agency for a regional TDM program and prioritized developing 
a regional TDM program in the immediate term (0-3 Years following plan adoption). 

To this end, Centralina applied for and received NC DOT TDM funds in FY2023 and FY2024 to 
fund Centralina’s administrative and project management expenses to develop a regional TDM 
plan. In FY2023, the CONNECT Beyond project team began the TDM plan and program 
development process, which included Centralina contracting with NC DOT to engage a pre-
qualified consultant in FY2023 and FY2024 to help develop the regional TDM plan. Kittelson & 
Associates was selected to serve as the prime consultant for this project and a final agreement 
between Kittelson and NC DOT was in place by April 2023.  

9

mailto:jwager@centralina.org
mailto:rmurphy@centralina.org
https://www.connect-beyond.com/plan/all-recommendations/


Template Revised August 2023 

In FY2024, staff from Centralina and Kittelson collaborated on a 16-month process to develop 
the regional TDM plan and program. The process has included the following elements: 

• Case studies of five peer TDM programs across the country
• A regional TDM assessment report and identification of “hot spots” where preliminary

TDM efforts can be targeted
• Engagement with diverse stakeholders (businesses, workforce and economic

development boards, elected officials, planners and transportation advocates) to inform
the TDM program’s priorities

• Development of TDM strategies and performance metrics applicable to the diverse
range of communities across our region

• Establishment of a program name and brand identity
• Development of a TDM implementation guidebook to lay the foundation for the

program’s operations
This process is anticipated to conclude with the final regional TDM plan’s completion and 
adoption in Summer 2024. 

In FY2025, Centralina will pursue the following activities: 
• Finalizing the TDM plan and program development process
• Building program recognition and support across the Centralina region among public,

private and non-profit sector partners
• Developing a TDM toolbox of strategies and resources for employers, local governments,

schools, healthcare campuses, and other entities looking to implement TDM
• Holding educational events and conducting other outreach to promote the region’s

range of available transportation choices and the broader TDM program offerings

To fund continued administrative and project management expenses on Centralina’s part, 
Centralina will submit a grant application for NC DOT FY2025 TDM funds no later than March 
29, 2024. This grant application requires an organization’s board to adopt the attached 
resolution, which ensures the 50% local match funding is programmed and available for TDM 
activities. For FY2025, Centralina’s application will request $20,000 in NC DOT funds to be 
matched with $20,000 in local funds, for a total of $40,000 in program funding for FY2025 
under the NC DOT grant program. 

Requested Action / Recommendation:  
Motion to adopt the attached TDM Grant Resolution and affirm $20,000 in local match funds for 
Centralina’s NC DOT TDM grant in FY2025. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) 

NC DOT must receive this adopted resolution by the grant application 
deadline on March 29, 2024, in order to consider Centralina’s grant 
application. 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) $20,000 in local match funds for FY2025 

Attachments: 
(none or list) TDM Grant Resolution 

10



1 Revised 04-07-2021 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM RESOLUTION 

FY 2025 RESOLUTION 

Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof. 

Applicant seeking permission to apply for Public Transportation Program funding, enter into agreement with the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation, provide the necessary assurances and the required local match. 

A motion was made by (Board Member’s Name)  and seconded by (Board Member’s Name or N/A, if not required)  for the 
adoption of the following resolution, and upon being put to a vote was duly adopted. 

WHEREAS, Article 2B of Chapter 136 of the North Carolina General Statutes and the Governor of North Carolina 
have designated the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) as the agency responsible for 
administering federal and state public transportation funds; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation will apply for a grant from the US Department of 
Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and receives funds from the North Carolina General Assembly to 
provide assistance for rural public transportation projects; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of these transportation funds is to provide grant monies to local agencies for the 
provision of rural, small urban, and urban public transportation services consistent with the policy requirements of 
each funding source for planning, community and agency involvement, service design, service alternatives, 
training and conference participation, reporting and other requirements (drug and alcohol testing policy and 
program, disadvantaged business enterprise program, and fully allocated costs analysis); and 

WHEREAS, the funds applied for may be Administrative, Operating, Planning, or Capital funds and will have 
different percentages of federal, state, and local funds. 

WHEREAS, non-Community Transportation applicants may apply for funding for “purchase-of-service” projects 
under the Section 5310 program. 

WHEREAS, Centralina Regional Council hereby assures and certifies that it will provide the required local 
matching funds; that its staff has the technical capacity to implement and manage the project(s), prepare required 
reports, obtain required training, attend meetings and conferences; and agrees to comply with the federal and 
state statutes, regulations, executive orders, Section 5333 (b) Warranty, and all administrative requirements 
related to the applications made to and grants received from the Federal Transit Administration, as well as the 
provisions of Section 1001 of Title 18, U. S. C. 

WHEREAS, the applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the 
State of North Carolina required for the project;  

11



2 Revised 04-07-2021 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Executive Director of Centralina Regional Council is hereby authorized to 
submit grant application (s) for federal and state funding in response to NCDOT’s calls for projects, make the necessary 
assurances and certifications and be empowered to enter into an agreement with the NCDOT to provide rural, small 
urban, and urban public transportation services. 

I (Certifying Official’s Name)*  , Centralina Board Chair, do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of an 
excerpt from the minutes of a meeting of the Centralina Regional Council Executive Board duly held on the 13th day of 
March, 2024. 

Signature of Certifying Official 

*Note that the authorized official, certifying official, and notary public should be three separate individuals.

Seal Subscribed and sworn to me (date) 

Notary Public * 

Printed Name and Address  

My commission expires (date) 

Affix Notary Seal Here 

12



Item 3 

13



Template Revised August 2023 

Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: March 13, 2024 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Linda Miller Presentation 
Time: 5 min 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Cindy Kincaid 

Phone Number: (704)348-2715

Email: ckincaid@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Debi Lee 
Phone Number: (704)348-2714

Email: dlee@centralina.org 
Submitting 
Department: 

Area Agency on 
Aging 

Department 
Head Approval: 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda:   
Centralina Spotlight: Family Caregiver Support Program 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 
Centralina Area Agency on Aging staff will provide a short video about our work in the region 
related to providing services and supports to older and disabled adults and their caregivers 
through the Family Caregiver Support Program (FCSP). 
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

This will be a standing item on all Centralina Board meetings in 2024. The purpose is to share a 
success story of Centralina’s work, highlight an innovative program, or a regional collaboration 
throughout the year.  

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Receive as information and Board Feedback. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) None 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) None 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

FCSP Brochure 

14



Resources, Respite & Services  
for Caregivers

FAMILY CAREGIVER 
SUPPORT PROGRAM

IREDELL

ROWAN

CABARRUS

MECKLENBURG

UNION ANSON

GASTON

LINCOLN

STANLY

Our Mission
Centralina Area Agency on 
Aging (AAA) helps vulnerable 
older adults and people 
with disabilities live with 
independence and dignity. 
Centralina AAA serves the 
counties of Anson, Cabarrus, 
Gaston, Iredell, Lincoln, 
Mecklenburg, Rowan, Stanly 
and Union.

Local Providers
Call Centralina AAA at  
1-800-508-5777 or reach out  
to your local provider to find out 
what services are available in 
your county:

• Anson County Council on 
Aging: 704-694-6616

• Cabarrus County  
Department of Human 
Services: 704-920-1400

• Gaston County  
Department of Health and 
Human Services:  
704-862-7540

• Iredell County Council on 
Aging: 704-873-5171

• Lincoln County Senior 
Services Department:  
704-736-8410

• Mecklenburg County 
Department of Social 
Services: 704-432-1111

• Rufty-Holmes Senior Center 
(Rowan County): 704-216-7714

• Stanly County Senior Services 
Department: 704-986-3769

• Council on Aging in Union 
County: 704-292-1797

Centralina Area Agency on Aging is a division of 
Centralina Regional Council

1 (800) 508-5777
www.CentralinaAging.org

15



Who is Eligible?
To qualify for FCSP assistance, 
caregivers must be one of the 
following. 

● Adult age 18 or older providing
unpaid care for a disabled
older adult, age 60 or over

● Adult age 18 or older providing
unpaid care for an individual
with Alzheimer’s Disease or
related dementia

● Adult age 55 or older (not a
parent) living with and raising
a relative child under age 18

● Adult age 55 or older living
with and raising an adult child
over age 18 that has a disability

Contact Centralina AAA at 1 (800) 508-5777

About the Program
In 2022, caregivers across North 
Carolina provided 514 million 
hours of unpaid care, valued at 
$7.3 billion. The Family Caregiver 
Support Program (FCSP) was 
established to educate, support 
and uplift these unpaid or family 
caregivers. The FCSP provides 
support needed for caregivers 
to keep their loved ones in the 
community longer and avoid 
costly long-term care placement. 
Centralina Area Agency on Aging 
delivers this service directly and 
in partnership with contracted 
providers across the region.

How We Can Help
The following resources may be 
available to you. Some are based 
on eligibility and provided on a 
short-term basis.

Information about local 
resources available for 
family caregivers 

Assistance connecting  
to community services  
in your area

Training & Support Groups 
to foster relationships with 
other caregivers and build 
coping skills 

 “It helped me tremendously to have 
someone come in and provide respite. 
The FCSP staff stayed in continuous 
contact with me and answered all 
my questions. I recommend it to any 
caregiver that needs help.”

– Juanita McMullen

Respite Care available through 
in-home aid services, adult  
day centers or residential 
facilities offer caregivers a  
well-deserved break

Supplemental Services  
provides equipment, devices 
or supplies to support 
individuals’ ability to remain  
in the community

16



Item 4 

17



Template Revised August 2023 

Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting 
Date: March 12, 2024 Agenda Item 

Type: 

Committee 
work 
sessions: 

Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Geraldine Gardner Presentation 
Time: 10min 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Geraldine Gardner 

Phone Number: 704-351-7130
Email: ggardner@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Narissa Claiborne 
Phone Number: 717-434-2284
Email:  nknight@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Administration Department 
Head Approval: G. Gardner

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda:  Executive Board Orientation & 2024 Forecast 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 

The Executive Board will participate in an interactive session to meet new representatives and 
discuss the forecast of 2024 meeting topics.  

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

New representatives to the Executive Board were selected at the February 21st Board of 
Delegates meeting.   

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Receive as information. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) None 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) None 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 1. Executive Board Overview

18



704-372-2416  | info@centralina.org | 10735  David Taylor Drive, Suite 250, Charlotte, NC 28262  |  www.centralina.org

2024 Executive 
Board Overview

Executive Board Role
• Decision Maker: Reviews and approves certain contracts, 

policies/procedures, the annual audit and budget amendments.

• Collaborator: Provides strategic  guidance and feedback on Centralina 
workplan items, programs and initiatives upon request from staff.

• Networker: Engages other Delegates to build relationships and 
connections to Centralina.   EB members are asked to support the Chair and 
Executive Director in following up with Delegates will low attendance rates. 

• Advocate: Champions the region with state & federal partners as part of the 
Raleigh Relations Initiative and Federal Advocacy Agenda.

Meeting Date Topic Forecast 
Note: Does not include contracts, budget amendments and other 
action items on consent

April 12, 2024 • In Focus Discussion: Aging Program Sustainability
• FY25 Compensation Recommendation
• Federal Relations Update

June 14, 2024 • FY25 Workplan Briefing and Approval
• Federal & State Relations Update

September 13, 
2024

• In Focus Discussion: CONNECT Beyond Legislative 
Update & Advancing the Plan Committee 
presentation

• Broadband and Digital Inclusion Update

November 8, 
2024

• Annual Audit Briefing and Approval
• In Focus Discussion: 2025 Federal and State 

Legislative Agenda Setting
• Nominating Committee Formation

19



704-372-2416  | info@centralina.org | 10735  David Taylor Drive, Suite 250, Charlotte, NC 28262  |  www.centralina.org

2024 Executive 
Board Members

Board Officers
Chair: Councilmember Jay McCosh, Town of McAdenville 

Vice Chair: Mayor Pro Tem David Scholl, Town of Stallings

Treasurer: Commissioner Jarvis Woodburn, Anson County

Secretary: Commissioner Tony Long, Town of Mint Hill

County Representatives
Cabarrus County Commissioner Lynn Shue

Gaston County Commissioner Bob Hovis

Iredell County Commissioner Gene Houpe

Lincoln County Commissioner Jamie Lineberger

Mecklenburg County Commissioner Elaine Powell

Stanly County Commissioner Patty Crump

Union County Commissioner Brian Helms

Municipal & At-Large Representatives 
Council Member Marjorie Molina, 
Charlotte

Mayor Darrell Hinnant, Kannapolis 
(Committee, Chair)

To Be Appointed, At Large

To Be Appointed, At Large

Mayor Jennifer Teague, Harrisburg

Council Member Felina Harris, 
Troutman 

Council Member Kevin Demeny, 
Lincolnton 

Alderman Shawn Rush, East Spencer 

Councilmember Jamie Hammill, 
Misenheimer20



Item 5 

21



Template Revised August 2023 

Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: March 13, 2024 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Geraldine Gardner Presentation 
Time: 15min 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Geraldine Gardner 

Phone Number: 704-351-7130
Email: ggardner@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Michelle Nance 
Phone Number: 704-348-2709
Email: mnance@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Executive Department 
Head Approval: G. Gardner

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda:  Timber Road Extension Grant Agreement 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 

The Executive Board is asked to approve the acceptance of a $15,000,000 grant directed to 
Centralina by the NC General Assembly in the 2023 Appropriations Act and the Committee 
Report. 

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

Please see the accompanying documentation on the following pages. 

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Motion to accept the $15 million grant from the State of North Carolina for the purposes outlined 
in the attached scope of work. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) Accep 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) 

• $140,000 in direct funding will come to Centralina in FY25 for grant
administration

• Interest earned on $14,860,000

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

1. Office of State Budget and Management Grant Agreement
Template

2. Proposed Grant Agreement Project SOW
3. Norman Village Road Project Narrative – Submitted by M Group

Companies
4. Norman Village Road Budget – Submitted by M Group Companies
5. Town of Mooresville -  Developer Agreement

https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ncleg.gov%2FSessions%2F2023%2FBills%2FHouse%2FPDF%2FH259v7.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cggardner%40centralina.org%7Cf26559d97ed247c76ede08dc080b81c2%7C75cdec9dfb884a7da9635b4e9618b18e%7C0%7C0%7C638394093040106267%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ykphkGWufuRryofe%2B%2Fg%2Bxty4Dl3ohMfq30JyDWGNjFU%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwebservices.ncleg.gov%2FViewNewsFile%2F81%2FCommitteeReport_2023_09_20_Final&data=05%7C02%7Cggardner%40centralina.org%7Cf26559d97ed247c76ede08dc080b81c2%7C75cdec9dfb884a7da9635b4e9618b18e%7C0%7C0%7C638394093040106267%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YLVSWnNNXdmXQgrEgSQ44K6y90Z2WGSQ7wM5m1zX8IQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwebservices.ncleg.gov%2FViewNewsFile%2F81%2FCommitteeReport_2023_09_20_Final&data=05%7C02%7Cggardner%40centralina.org%7Cf26559d97ed247c76ede08dc080b81c2%7C75cdec9dfb884a7da9635b4e9618b18e%7C0%7C0%7C638394093040106267%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YLVSWnNNXdmXQgrEgSQ44K6y90Z2WGSQ7wM5m1zX8IQ%3D&reserved=0


Template Revised August 2023 

Key Facts & Recommendations 

• Per direction from members of the General Assembly the funds are to be sub-
awarded to the M Group Companies to build the Timber Road Extension as
part of the multi-phased Norman Village Development project.

o Please see the attached Developer Agreement and refer to page 7 for a
description of the road project:  “A multi-lane roadway within the 80-
foot right of way labeled “Prop. Timber Lake Extension” and “Prop.
Timber Road Extension” as show on the Development Plan.  The Timber
Road Extension includes all areas that are outside of the Rail Crossing
Project as defined herein1, and includes a connection to U.S. Highway
21, a connection to Highway 115, and all associated improvements and
supporting infrastructure related thereto.”

o Please see the attached M Group Companies project narrative.

• According to the Office of State Budget and Management, there are no state
procurement or sub-contracting regulations associated with directed
grants/appropriations administered by that office.

• Centralina will utilize the allowable $140,000 from the $15,000,000 grant for
administrative purposes including: coordinating reporting, monitoring the
subaward agreement with the developer, managing the financial aspects of
the grant, coordinating with the Town of Mooresville.

• $14,860,000 is available to M Group Companies to fund the Timber Road
Extension construction.  Any construction costs in excess of this amount are
the responsibility of the developer.  Please see the attached project budget
developed by M Group Companies.

• The full $15 million will be transferred to Centralina upon grant agreement
execution.

o Funds will be held in an interest-bearing account; Centralina is allowed
to accrue interest and use as program income.

• Centralina will entered into a subaward agreement with M Group Companies
with specific terms and conditions that mirror and support the requirements
of their agreement with the Town of Mooresville.  A copy of this agreement is
included as the final document in the attachment package.

• Recommendation:  The Executive Director recommends that Centralina’s
Executive Board approve the grant agreement and provide direction on the

1 “Rail Crossing Project” means all portions of the Timber Road Extension that fall within the area controlled by 
Northfolk Southern Railroad, and includes obtaining the approval of Norfolk Southern for a public at grade railroad 
crossing in this area and ensuring completion of all associated infrastructure required by Norfolk Southern to make 
improvements within that area.  The Rail Crossing Project area is located near the intersection of Highway 115 and 
Timber Road.  

23



 

Template Revised August 2023 

specific terms and conditions to guide the development of the subaward 
agreement with the developer. 

• If the Executive Board would like to review and approve the subaward 
agreement before it is finalized, then this would be brought before the Board 
at the April 10th meeting. 

Subaward Terms & Conditions Recommendations 

• The Executive Director does not recommend that the Executive Board allow 
for the developer to receive the full $14,860,000 upfront.  

• The Executive Director offers the following terms and conditions options for 
the Executive Board’s consideration:  

o Method of payment 

 100% reimbursement contract - the developer will be required to 
submit reimbursement request upon the delivery of the project 
or acceptance of the road by the Town of Mooresville. 

 Partial payment – the developer can receive an initial payment 
with execution of the subaward, but full payment is contingent 
on the delivery of the project or acceptance of the road by the 
Town of Mooresville. 

 Payment schedule – the subaward will outline a payment 
schedule and associated performance milestones. 

o Liability – subaward agreement must be written to limit Centralina’s 
liability in the construction process and post-construction once the 
road is accepted into the Town’s inventory of public roads.  

o Reporting – the developer will be required to report on performance 
milestones consistent with their developer agreement with the Town of 
Mooresville and Centralina’s grant agreement with OSBM. 

o Use of disadvantaged business program– there is no requirement for 
compliance associated with the source of these funds, but the NC 
Department of Transportation does have a robust program and 
tracking of DBE contractors could be a requirement that we add to the 
subaward.  

o Use of the Centralina Workforce Development Board NC Works Career 
Center in Mooresville for hiring needs. 

o Centralina’s attorney will ensure compliance with all applicable laws 
and regulations. 

 

 

 

24



 

Template Revised August 2023 

Role of Centralina and Consistency with Charter 

The following sections of Centralina’s Charter points to the alignment between this 
project and the organization’s mandated responsibilities.  

• Item IV: Purpose and Functions: 
o “promote intergovernmental cooperation, communication and 

planning” 
 This grant is an example of intergovernmental cooperation 

between the State of North Carolina, Centralina and the Town of 
Mooresville 

o Transportation is one of the functional areas listed under this 
subsection 

• Item VIII: Powers and Duties of the Council 
o A. General delegation of powers conferred upon the Council by the 

General Assembly of North Carolina 
 This grant was authorized in the 2023 Appropriations Act and/or 

the Committee Report. 
o B.2. To accept, receive and disburse grants made available by the State 

of North Carolina 
 This grant was authorized in the 2023 Appropriations Act and/or 

the Committee Report. 
o B.3. To meet with, consult with or contract with any municipality or 

private organization in the furtherance of the purposes and objectives 
within its jurisdiction. 
 Charter allows for the contracting with private entities. 

Proposed Timeline & Next Steps 

• March 13, 2024: Executive Board approves the receipt of the $15million grant 
and associated scope of work for the project.  

• March 15, 2024:  Executive Director submits SOW to Office of State Budget 
and Management for review and acceptance. 

• Mid-March-April 2024:   

o Grant agreement with State of North Carolina Executed 

o Centralina prepares for the receipt of funds 

o Centralina begins negotiations and subaward drafting with legal 
counsel 

• April 10, 2024: Executive Board reviews the subaward agreement between 
Centralina and the M Group Companies, LLC  

• End of April – May:  Subaward agreement is executed  

 

 

25

https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ncleg.gov%2FSessions%2F2023%2FBills%2FHouse%2FPDF%2FH259v7.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cggardner%40centralina.org%7Cf26559d97ed247c76ede08dc080b81c2%7C75cdec9dfb884a7da9635b4e9618b18e%7C0%7C0%7C638394093040106267%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ykphkGWufuRryofe%2B%2Fg%2Bxty4Dl3ohMfq30JyDWGNjFU%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwebservices.ncleg.gov%2FViewNewsFile%2F81%2FCommitteeReport_2023_09_20_Final&data=05%7C02%7Cggardner%40centralina.org%7Cf26559d97ed247c76ede08dc080b81c2%7C75cdec9dfb884a7da9635b4e9618b18e%7C0%7C0%7C638394093040106267%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YLVSWnNNXdmXQgrEgSQ44K6y90Z2WGSQ7wM5m1zX8IQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ncleg.gov%2FSessions%2F2023%2FBills%2FHouse%2FPDF%2FH259v7.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cggardner%40centralina.org%7Cf26559d97ed247c76ede08dc080b81c2%7C75cdec9dfb884a7da9635b4e9618b18e%7C0%7C0%7C638394093040106267%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ykphkGWufuRryofe%2B%2Fg%2Bxty4Dl3ohMfq30JyDWGNjFU%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwebservices.ncleg.gov%2FViewNewsFile%2F81%2FCommitteeReport_2023_09_20_Final&data=05%7C02%7Cggardner%40centralina.org%7Cf26559d97ed247c76ede08dc080b81c2%7C75cdec9dfb884a7da9635b4e9618b18e%7C0%7C0%7C638394093040106267%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=YLVSWnNNXdmXQgrEgSQ44K6y90Z2WGSQ7wM5m1zX8IQ%3D&reserved=0


 Page 1 of 6 

North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management 
 

Contract # __________ 
 
 
This Agreement is hereby entered into by and between the NC Office of State Budget and Management (the 
"AGENCY") and __________________________________________________________________________ 
(the "RECIPIENT") (referred to collectively as the “Parties”).   
 
1. EFFECTIVE TERM: 

 
The RECIPIENT’s performance period for this agreement shall be effective starting July 1, 2023, through 
____________________.  The PARTIES’ duties of record-keeping, monitoring, reporting, and auditing 
continue thereafter as provided below.  

 
 

2. RECIPIENT’S DUTIES: 
 

The RECIPIENT is authorized by this agreement to use funds for purposes referenced in the Current 
Operations Appropriations Act, Session Law (S.L.) 2023-134. The RECIPIENT’s scope of work is a complete and 
concise scope of goods or services supported by this agreement and consistent with language in S.L. 2023-
134.  (See Appendix A).   
 

The RECIPIENT agrees to use the funds in the amounts allocated for the budget cost items set forth in the 
RECIPIENT’s Budget.  RECIPIENT may reallocate and/or redistribute among budgeted items up to 10% in 
overall budget costs without the express written permission of the AGENCY.  
 

The RECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that the total funding level available under this agreement 
will not exceed _______________.    
 
The RECIPIENT acknowledges they have provided the following additional documentation: 
 

a. Internal Revenue Service W-9 form (includes address, Tax ID)    ____________ 

b. Electronic Payment Form & Supporting Document   ____________ 

c. Scope of Work – Appendix A ____________ 

d. Policy addressing conflicts of interest  ___________ 

e. Sworn Statement of no overdue tax debts ___________ 

 
The RECIPIENT understands and acknowledges required compliance with all statutory provisions outlined in 
G.S. 143C-6-22 Use of State funds by non-State entities, 9 N.C.A.C. Subchapter 3M and the requirements 
found in S.L. 2023-134, Section 5.3; 12.1 and 12.2. 
 
The RECIPIENT shall ensure: 

a. Funds are used for nonsectarian, nonreligious purposes only. 
b. No more than $140,000 in State funds, including any interest earnings accruing from those funds, 

may be used for the annual salary of any individual employee of a nonprofit organization. 

26



 Page 2 of 6 

c. Interest earnings on funds shall be used for the same purposes for which the grant was made. 
d. Submission of quarterly reports on financial and performance progress. This shall include the 

financial and performance progress of the RECIPIENT and all SUB-RECIPIENTS. 
e. Compliance with 9 N.C.A.C. Subchapter 3M.0205. 

 
Pursuant to G.S 143C-6-8, the RECIPIENT understands and agrees that funding shall be subject to the 
availability of appropriated funds.  However, in the event of agreement termination due to lack of adequate 
appropriated funds, the AGENCY will ensure that it will pay for services and goods acquired and obligated on 
or before the notice of agreement termination.  
 
 

3. AGENCY’S DUTIES & PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 
 
The AGENCY shall ensure that funds allocated and disbursed pursuant to Session Law 2023-134 comply with 
the intent and guidance found in these Session Laws and ensure compliance with related state statutes and 
financial management standards. 
 
The AGENCY is subject to the following requirements: 

a. Upon execution of this contract and the RECIPIENT’s submission of documents identified in Section 
2 of this contract, the AGENCY shall pay the RECIPIENT the full amount as identified in the scope of 
work within 30 days.  

b. Develop RECIPIENT quarterly financial and performance reporting document that shall incorporate 
the requirements of 9 N.C.A.C. Subchapter 3M.0205 and require the RECIPIENT to: 

i. Certify that funds received or held were used for the intended purpose. 
ii. Provide an accounting for funds received, interest earned, funds expended. 

iii. Provide activities, accomplishments, and performance measures. 
iv. Provide a list of employees and the amount of State funds used for the employee’s 

annual salary. 
v. Provide supporting invoices, contracts, payroll information or other documents to 

support expenditures. 
c. Provide a secure method for submitting financial and performance reports. 
d. Conduct financial and performance monitoring until the contract is completed.  
e. Funds will not revert until October 3, 2025.  

 
 
4. FUNDS MANAGEMENT:   

 
The RECIPIENT agrees that funds paid through this contract shall be subject to the following: 

a. Accounted for in a separate fund and accounting structure within the RECIPIENT’s central accounting 
and / or grant management system.  This shall include accounting for interest earned on these funds. 

b. All accounts payable disbursements, check register disbursements and related transactions shall be 
managed in a detailed manner that supports fully transparent accounting of all financial transactions 
associated with this funding allocations described in Section 3 above.    

c. Expenditures for travel mileage, meals, lodging and other travel expenses incurred in the 
performance of this Contract shall be reasonable and supported by documentation.  State rates 
should be used as guidelines. International travel shall not be eligible under this Contract.  

 
d. If eligible, the RECIPIENT and all subrecipients shall:  

27



 Page 3 of 6 

i. Request from the North Carolina Department of Revenue a refund of all sales and use 
taxes paid by them in the performance of this Contract, pursuant to N.C.G.S. 105-
164.14; and 

ii. Exclude all refundable sales and use taxes from all reportable expenditures before the 
expenses are entered in their quarterly project status reports. 

 
 

5. POST-GRANT AWARD DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS: 
 
The RECIPIENT agrees to submit the required quarterly report on or before the 10th day following the end of 
each quarter.  The first report is due to the AGENCY during the quarter in which the funds have been received 
by the RECIPIENT.  The AGENCY shall provide the format and method for reporting.  All reports and 
supporting documents shall include the RECIPIENT and all SUB-RECIPIENT information and shall be 
submitted as prescribed by the AGENCY.   
 
RECIPIENT and any SUB-RECIPIENTS agree that all program activity results information reported shall be 
subject to review and authentication as described in Paragraph 7 and RECIPIENT will provide access to work 
papers, receipts, invoices and reporting records, if requested by the AGENCY, as the AGENCY executes any 
monitoring or internal audit responsibilities. 
 
RECIPIENTS and SUB-RECIPIENTS receiving $500,000 or more shall have a single or program-specific audit 
prepared and completed in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards, also 
known as the Yellow Book.  The audit report must be provided to the AGENCY no later than nine months 
after the end of the RECIPIENTS fiscal year.  This report shall be submitted as prescribed by the AGENCY.  
The cost of an audit conducted in conformance with the Yellow Book is an allowable cost for this grant. 
 

 
6. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATORS: 

 
All notices permitted or required to be given by one Party to the other and all questions about the 
Agreement from one Party to the other shall be addressed and delivered to the other Party’s Agreement 
Administrator.  The name, post office address, street address, telephone number, fax number, and email 
address of the Parties’ respective initial Agreement Administrators are set out below.  Either Party may 
change the name, post office address, street address, telephone number, fax number, or email address of 
its Agreement Administrator by giving timely written notice to the other Party. 
 

RECIPIENT and AGENCY Point of Contact 

RECIPIENT Contract Administrator AGENCY Contract Administrator 

Name:  _______________________________ 

 

Email: ________________________________ 

 

Direct Phone: __________________________ 
 

Fiscal year end MONTH:  _________________ 

Cole Jordan 
NC Office of State Budget and Management 
2 South Salisbury Street 
Raleigh, NC 27601 
 
 
Direct Phone: 984-236-0633 
Email: NCGrants@osbm.nc.gov  
 

28

mailto:NCGrants@osbm.nc.gov


 Page 4 of 6 

 

7. MONITORING AND AUDITING: 
 
The RECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that, from and after the date of execution of this Agreement and 
for five (5) years following its termination, the books, records, documents and facilities of the RECIPIENT are 
subject to being audited, inspected and monitored at any time by the AGENCY upon its request (whether in 
writing or otherwise).  The RECIPIENT further agrees to provide AGENCY staff and staff of the Office of State 
Auditor with access to financial and accounting records to support internal audit, financial reporting and 
related requirements.  
 
The RECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that, regarding the grant funds, it will be subject to the audit and 
reporting requirements prescribed in G.S. 159-34, Local Government Finance Act – Annual Independent 
Audit, rules, and regulations.  Such audit and reporting requirements may vary depending upon the amount 
and source of grant funding received by the RECIPIENT and are subject to change.  
 
 

8. TAXES: 
 
The RECIPIENT shall be considered to be an independent RECIPIENT and as such shall be responsible for all 
taxes.  The RECIPIENT agrees to provide the AGENCY with the RECIPIENT'S correct taxpayer identification 
number upon the execution of this Agreement. The RECIPIENT agrees that failure to provide the AGENCY 
with a correct taxpayer identification number authorizes the AGENCY to withhold any amount due and 
payable under this Agreement. 
 
 

9. SITUS: 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of North Carolina and any claim for breach or enforcement of 
this Agreement shall be filed in State court in Wake County, North Carolina. 
 
 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW:  
 
The RECIPIENT shall remain an independent RECIPIENT and as such shall be wholly responsible for the scope 
of work to be performed under this Agreement and for the supervision of his employees and assistants. The 
RECIPIENT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required in performing the 
services under this agreement.  Such employees shall not be employees of or have any individual contractual 
relationship with the AGENCY.  The RECIPIENT shall be responsible for compliance with all laws, ordinances, 
codes, rules, regulations, licensing requirements and other regulatory matters that are applicable to the 
conduct of its business and work performance under this Agreement, including those of Federal, State, and 
local agencies having appropriate jurisdiction. 
 
The Recipient acknowledges and agrees that, in its conduct under this Contract and in connection with any 
and all expenditures of grant funds made by it, it shall comply with the cost principles enunciated in the 
Code of Federal Regulations, 2 CFR, Part 200.  The Recipient further acknowledges and agrees that, if it 
grants any of the grant funds awarded hereunder to one or more sub-recipients or sub-sub-recipients, the 
Recipient shall, by contract, ensure that said cost principles are made applicable to and binding upon any 
and all such SUB-RECIPIENTS, SUB-SUB-RECIPIENTS, etc. in their handling, use and expenditure of the funds 
awarded to the RECIPIENT hereunder. 

29



 Page 5 of 6 

 
11. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT:   

 
This agreement may be terminated by mutual consent upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other party, 
or as otherwise provided by law.  As soon as reasonably possible following termination of this agreement, 
the amount of any residual unexpended funds shall be transferred to the AGENCY. 

 
 
12. AMENDMENTS:  

 
This Agreement may be amended in writing which documents approval of changes by both the AGENCY and 
the RECIPIENT.   

 
 
13. AGREEMENT CLOSE-OUT PROCESS:   

 
The RECIPIENT agrees to submit to the AGENCY a complete performance and expenditure status report (final 
quarterly report) within ninety (90) days after the completion of the project or final expenditure date, 
whichever is later.  Unexpended funds should be promptly returned to the AGENCY at this time. 
 
RECIPIENT will be deemed noncompliant if its final report is not submitted within the 90-day period stated 
above.  Once the complete final performance and financial status report package has been received and 
evaluated by the AGENCY, the RECIPIENT will receive official notification of agreement close-out.  The letter 
will inform the RECIPIENT that the AGENCY is officially closing the agreement and retaining all agreement 
files and related material for a period of five (5) years or until all audit exceptions have been resolved, 
whichever is longer. 

 
 
14. AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE WARRANTY: 

 
The undersigned represent and warrant that they are authorized to bind their principals to the terms of this 
agreement.  In Witness Whereof, the RECIPIENT and the AGENCY have executed this Agreement in duplicate 
originals, with one original being retained by each party. 

 
 
RECIPIENT NAME 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature              Date 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name             Title 
 

30



 Page 6 of 6 

 
 
NC OFFICE OF STATE BUDGET AND MANAGEMENT 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature                                                                                  Date 
 
 

 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________   
Printed Name             Title 

31



OSBM Grant Appendix A 
Effective: 11/2023 

Page 1 of 2 

1. Organization:

2. Grant ID:

As part of this grant agreement, you are required to provide a description of how you will spend the grant funds in compliance 
with the specific purpose as stated in the Appropriations Act (“Scope of Work”). You are also required to submit information 
related to any potential sub-grants and a budget for the grant funds. Please attach additional sheets as necessary. 

3. Scope of Work
Objectives, Results, Performance Measures:

Recipient shall detail below how the organization will spend the grant funds in compliance with the specific purpose(s) 
as stated in the Appropriations Act. The description should include objectives to be achieved, expected results and 
performance measures. The description should also include anticipated timing of those objectives, expected results 
and any services provided. 

Objective(s): 

Expected 
Results: 

 Performance 
 Measure(s):

Appendix A 
Scope of Work, Sub-Grants, and Annual Budget 

How do you 
plan to spend 
your grant 
funds? What 
project(s) do 
you want to 
accomplish?

List the steps 
it will take to 
accomplish 
the project(s) 
supported by 
these grant 
funds. 

What do you 
hope will be 
accomplished 
through the 
projects 
supported by 
these grant 
funds?

If the project is 
programmatic, 
list the estimated 
measurements 
for project 
outcomes. 

32



OSBM Grant Appendix A 
Effective: 11/2023 

Page 2 of 2 

5. Budget:

4. Sub-grants:
a. Does the Recipient anticipate that it will sub-grant or pass down any funds to
another organization?

Yes No 

If yes, answer the following: 
b. Name of Sub-recipient c. Program Name d. Amount to Sub-recipient

Below are general expenditure descriptions that can serve as a guide for preparing the organization’s budget related to the 
grant award. Please provide a breakdown of estimated expenses for each category below or as an attachment. 

The following budget is for the time period beginning ( 

EXPENDITURE DESCRIPTION 

Employee Expenses (ex. Salaries, hourly wages for 
grant project management /program related staffing). 

Administration Expenses (ex. utilities, telephone, data, 
lease related expenses) 

Goods Expenses (ex. supplies and equipment) 

Contract and Services Expenses (ex. Designers, 
Architects, Builders, Programmatic Service Providers) 

Other Expenses (ex. related charges not assigned above 
and described by recipient in breakdown below) 

Total Balance of the Project Fund (Grant total 
amount) 

) and ending ( ). 

AMOUNT 

Provide a breakdown of estimated expenses for each category below or as an attachment. 

Please note, you will sign off on this appendix as part of executing the Grant Agreement (Contract). 

Printed Name Title 

Signature Date 

33



1 Town Center Road, Suite 675 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

February 7, 2024 

Assistance Request: $15,000,000 to assist with funding of the Timber Rd. 

Extension 

Background: 

• In October of 2022 the Mooresville Town Board approved a Planned

Development that would bring the construction of a 560-unit single family

and multi-family development

• The key benefit of this development was the construction of the Timber Rd.

extension, a connection between Highway 115 and Highway 21. This

extension is a developer funded road project that has been part of the

Town of Mooresville Transportation Master Plan since the mid-90’s.

• Per the Town of Mooresville Staff report in support of this project:

o This Project will provide a key component of the Transportation

Master Plan (TMP)

o TMP is an update to the CTP. The TMP is the guide to achieving the

goal of creating more connected communities. The TMP has three

key considerations:

▪ 1. Connection

▪ 2. Choice

▪ 3. Future Development

• The Project addresses these three TMP considerations.

▪ Currently there are limited roads that can directly connect a

resident or through traveler from one side of town to the

other. This Property will dedicate and build the Timber Road

Extension which, when coupled with the existing Timber Road,

will provide a connection from Highway 21 to Shearers Road.

▪ As reflected on the site plan, the Project sits between and is

served by two major roads and intersections. Timber Road

34



1 Town Center Road, Suite 675 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

Extension will provide a much needed and attractive 

transportation corridor between these two major roads. With 

this road extension, travelers will have a choice as to how to 

move efficiently east and west through Mooresville. Travelers 

will also have an alternative to using a vehicle.  

o An attractive transportation corridor and transportation choice are

crucial for future development. The project design promotes

pedestrian connectivity, served by a network of sidewalks throughout

the site and a greenway trail for pedestrians and cyclists. Both Timber

Road Extension and the greenway trail will serve all the Mooresville

community, ensuring safe and efficient vehicular and pedestrian

access from Highway 115 to Highway 21.

o 115 intersections with Timber Road. The project will also provide

connections to local roads such as Foursquare and Deerwood.

o Project will alleviate close to 30,000 plus trips on Hwy 115 and Hwy

21 going downtown to use West Wilson Ave to connect.

35



1 Town Center Road, Suite 675 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

Assistance Request: 

• Since approval in October of 2022 building costs have continued to increase

thus putting a strain on the financial viability of the project in the current

economic environment

• Project includes a rail crossing that must be designed and built by the

development team that NCDOT rail has estimated will exceed $1.8 million

Town of Mooresville/Developer Partnership 

This project is part of a Planned Development zoning option within the Unified 

Development Ordinance of Mooresville. As a condition of this zoning the Town 

and the Developer are required to enter into a development agreement that lays 

out the conditions, restrictions and timing of the project in conjunction with the 

36



1 Town Center Road, Suite 675 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

construction of the critical infrastructure. For this project that is the Timber Rd. 

extension road and the required Norfolk Southern rail crossing.  

The Developer Agreement lays out the following requirements for the 

construction of the road and crossing. 

• Posting of a $2,000,000 cash bond with the Town of Mooresville to secure 
the construction costs of the Norfolk Southern Crossing

• Posting of a performance bond in accordance with G.S. 160D-804.1 and the 
UDO to guarantee completion of construction of the Timber Road 

Extension

• Subordination of Security Agreement with Developer’s lender requiring 
dedication of all Right of Way necessary for construction of the road to the 
Town of Mooresville in the event of foreclosure

• Site construction required to start no later than 5 years post agreement 
execution

• Timber Rd. extension must be completed prior to final plat approval of 
Phases 3, 4, or 5

• Dedication of the road, green-way, utilities and all associated infrastructure 
to the town upon completion

Milestone Status
• Phase I of road engineering complete, build permit expected week of 2/12
• Phase II of road engineering in first review cycle with Town of Mooresville
• Norfolk Southern rail crossing engineering nearly complete with submission 

expected at end of February
• Phase II of road construction scheduled to begin middle of June, pending timing of 

Town of Mooresville review and approval

37



1 Town Center Road, Suite 675 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

Mooresville Transportation Master Plan 

Timber Rd. Extension outlined by yellow circle 

38



1 Town Center Road, Suite 675 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

Project Development Plan 

39



Address: 1 Town Center Rd., Suite 675
Boca Raton, FL 33486

Contact: Brian Macho, COO
bmacho@mgrpcompanies.com

Project Name: Norman Village Rd.
Start Date: 7/1/24
Bid Date: 2/7/24

Total
$600,000
$350,000
$800,000
$225,000

$3,125,000
$7,150,000
$1,400,000

TIA Mitigation Measures Agreement Requirements* $1,250,000
Norfolk Southern Rail Line Crossing $2,500,000

$190,000
$500,000

$18,090,000

*Only costs directly associated  to turn lanes and  signalization off Hwy 115 and Hwy 21 included.   
Other off-site costs required by the TIA MMA not included in this budget. 

Street Trees
Contingency

TOTAL

Project Budget
COSTS

Legal
Third Party Due Diligence / Inspections / Testing
Engineers / Consultants
Land Condemnation
Pre-Con / Clearing / Site Prep
Site Work / Paving / Landscaping
Retaining Walls

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



Item 6 

87



Template Revised August 2023 

Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: March 13, 2024 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Kelly Weston Presentation 
Time: 15 minutes 

Presenter at 
Meeting: 

Kelly Weston Phone Number: 704-348-2728

Email: kweston@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Geraldine Gardner 
Phone Number: 704-351-7130

Email: ggardner@centralina.org 
Submitting 
Department: 

Government Affairs & 
Member Engagement 

Department 
Head Approval: Michelle Nance 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda: State Relations Update 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 
The Board will receive an update on Centralina’s state government engagement activities.  

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 
In late 2020, Centralina began implementing the Raleigh Relations strategy to expand the 
organization’s state government engagement and advocacy efforts. The strategy is focused on 
relationship-building, raising awareness of issues specific to the Centralina region and 
promoting the interests of COGs statewide. At the January 11, 2023 Executive Board meeting, 
the Board adopted the 2023 Raleigh Relations Advocacy Agenda. This formal plan for state 
engagement outlines advocacy goals and strategies to support desired policy outcomes related 
to specific Centralina priorities.
Requested Action / Recommendation: 
Receive as information. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) None. 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) None. 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

88

None.

mailto:kweston@centralina.org
mailto:ggardner@centralina.org


Item 7 

90



Template Revised August 2023 

Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting 
Date: March 13, 2024 Agenda Item 

Type: 

Committee 
work 
sessions: 

Regular: X 

Submitting 
Person: Michelle Nance Presentation 

Time: 15 min 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Michelle Nance 

Phone 
N b

(704)348-2709
Email: mnance@centralina.org 

Alternate 
Contact: 

Phone 
Number: 
Email: 

Submitting 
Department: GAME Department 

Head 
Title of documents as shown in the agenda:  In-Focus Discussion: Regional Infrastructure
Innovation/CPRG Briefing
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 
In our growing region, continuous innovation is needed to ensure that our physical infrastructure 
can continue to meet our needs. Centralina is leading several initiatives aimed at helping our 
members take advantage of historic funding opportunities through innovative financing, 
education, technology, partnerships and regional cooperation. 
Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

In-focus discussions will appear on each Executive Board agenda, providing time, for discussion 
on major organization initiatives. This month’s highlight includes a briefing on two regional 
infrastructure-related projects. 

• The US DOT Regional Infrastructure Accelerator (RIA) program brings $1.7 million to the
region to develop innovative financing strategies that advance major pipeline projects and
provide technical assistance through an integrated mobility center.

• Planning for energy-efficient, future-ready communities through the EPA Climate
Pollution Reduction program has brought $1 in planning funds and opens the door to
over $4.3 billion in implementation funds related to transportation, building, and energy
infrastructure improvements.

This briefing will outline the purpose, timeline, and benefits of each program, and review next 
steps and how your community can be involved. 

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Receive as information and Board Feedback. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) None 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) None 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

RIA overview 

CPRG overview 

91



Infrastructure Finance Innovation
The Center will serve as a regional hub for technical assistance and knowledge sharing of innovative project 
finance models, tools and federal funding opportunities by:

• Increasing local knowledge of USDOT financing programs such as TIFIA, PAB, RRIF and USDOT
competitive grant programs.

• Coordinating across partner MPOs/RPOs/transit agencies to prioritize projects for eligible financing
and competitive funding programs.

• Providing grant writing support and application technical assistance to interested partners.

• Increasing local knowledge of best practices in project finance, public-private partnerships and
procurement that support the objectives of the Build America Bureau.

Pipeline Project Facilitation
The Center will lead regional coordination of priority CONNECT Beyond mobility projects that create a 
pipeline for federal financing. The following projects will be included if matching funds can be identified:

• LYNX Silver Line preliminary (15%) design for a planned light rail transit line from I-485 in the City of
Charlotte to the City of Belmont.  (Project Lead: CATS -Charlotte Area Transit System)

• Intercity/commuter rail expansion to connect Charlotte with Kings Mountain (Norfolk Southern
Charlotte-Kings Mountain Corridor) and Salisbury (Piedmont Corridor).

Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Innovation 
Centralina will expand internal capacity to advance TOD projects through a multi-layered approach:

• Creating a TOD focused learning path within the existing Centralina Learns professional development
learning series for local government staff and elected officials.

• Providing technical assistance to communities with specific TOD planning and local code
development projects, especially along intercity/commuter rail lines targeted for expansion.

Centralina Regional Council has been designated as a Regional Infrastructure Accelerator 
along with a $1,750,000 funding allocation from the U.S. Department of Transportation’s 
Build America Bureau. 

The grant will support Centralina in establishing the 
Centralina Integrated Mobility Center, a hub for 
CONNECT Beyond regional mobility plan implementation 
activities. This Center will play a pivotal role in advancing the
CONNECT Beyond project pipeline by focusing on three service lines. 

Accelerator Proposal Service Lines

Centralina Regional Council Receives
USDOT Designation as  a

Regional Infrastructure Accelerator

www.connect-beyond.com February 2024

92



704-372-2416 |  info@centralina.org  |  10735 David Taylor Drive, Suite 250, Charlotte, NC 28262 | www.centralina.org

Local Needs,
Future Resiliency

Centralina is helping member governments and partners develop 
shared strategies for energy-efficient, future-ready infrastructure that 
will reduce greenhouse gas emissions, create economic and job 
growth and promote substantial public health co-benefits. Efforts are 
focused on successfully accessing $4.3 billion in implementation 
grant funds designed to support local needs and priorities. 

Thank you for your participation in the creation of our region’s Priority 
Climate Action Plan (PCAP), the vehicle by which local project and 
priorities are made eligible for implementation funds.

Important Milestones

March 
2024

Priority Climate Action Plan (PCAP) 
due 3/1 created eligibility for local 
project funding.

April 
2024

Competitive round of $4.3 billion in 
implementation funds due 4/1 for 
regional & local projects/measures.

October
2024

Anticipated timing for funds to be 
awarded to selected recipients.

• Convening regional
stakeholders to develop
Priority Climate Actions
[July 2023 – March 2024]

• Coordinating key project
ideas into implementation
grant [Jan 2024-April 2024]

• Leading development of
regional Climate Action Plan
[April 2024 – July 2025]

• Supporting plan and
implementation delivery and
reporting
[July 2025 – July 2027}

How is Centralina 
Helping?

93



H a v e  Q u e s t i o n s ?
Reach out to Deputy Executive Director, Michelle Nance, at (704) 348-2709 or

mnance@centralina.org or Regional Planning Director, Jason Wager, at (704) 348-2707 or 
jwager@centralina.org to discuss how we can help.

CORE REGIONAL PARTNERS
• Catawba Regional Council of

Governments
• Mecklenburg County Air Quality
• Local governments, technical and

equity advisors and other stakeholders

Regional Partnerships & Engagement

Want to be involved?
Stakeholder engagement sessions will be available throughout the process to 
incorporate your inputs.  See our project website or contact us to be involved!

Centralina is leading coordination 

of regional partners, stakeholders 

and advisors across North and 

South Carolina to create a plan and 

playbook of local and regional 

investment options supporting: 

• enhanced local mobility options,

• newer technologies for fleets,

• electric vehicle infrastructure

planning,

• efficiencies in buildings and waste

management,

• enhanced logistics and distribution

systems for goods and

• actions to support the local food

economy.

This framework provides each 

unique community the tools to 

address the local needs they find 

most urgent and beneficial.

94

https://centralina.org/regional-collaboration/climate/

	0- EB Agenda Draft 3-13
	Divider Pages - Item 11
	1 -  Executive Board Minutes 1-10-24
	Divider Pages - Item 2
	2- EB Cover Sheet_TDM_240313
	2a-Program Resolution (TDM) FY 25
	Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.
	Affix Notary Seal Here

	Divider Pages - Item 3
	3- Regular item 1 - 3-12-EB_Spotlight_aging
	Centralina Spotlight- Family Caregiver Support Program
	Centralina_AAA_FCSP_Trifold Final-Attachement

	Divider Pages - Item 4
	4 - Cover_EB Intro 24
	4 a- EB 24 Overview
	2024 Executive Board Overview
	2024 Executive Board Members

	Divider Pages - Item 5
	5 -  Timber Road Extension_Full Package
	Grant Agreement_to make fillable_FY24_DIRECTED GRANTS.pdf
	North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management
	Contract # __________
	RECIPIENT NAME
	NC OFFICE OF STATE BUDGET AND MANAGEMENT

	Scope of Work_Timber Road Extension.pdf
	Below are general expenditure descriptions that can serve as a guide for preparing the organization’s budget related to the grant award. Please provide a breakdown of estimated expenses for each category below or as an attachment.
	EXPENDITURE DESCRIPTION
	Total Balance of the Project Fund (Grant total amount)
	AMOUNT


	Divider Pages - Item 6
	6 - State Update
	Divider Pages - Item 7
	7 - In Focus Cover sheet Reg Infra Inno - CPRG briefing combined 3.13.24
	RIA One Pager 2.2024 (1).pdf
	Slide Number 1

	CPRG Overview 2.22.24.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2



	1: 
	  Organization: Centralina Council of Governments, d.b.a Centralina Regional Council

	2: 
	  Grant ID: 40991

	Objectives: Centralina Regional Council will utilize funding "for the development of an infrastructure project that will leverage existing improvements that are associated with previously approved residential development located in Iredell County" consistent with 2023 Appropriations Act and Committee Report.  Specifically the funds will be sub-awarded to M Group Companies to construct the Timber Road Extension which is defined as a multi-lane roadway within the 80-foot right of way labeled “Prop. Timber Lake Extension” and “Prop. Timber Road Extension” as shown on the Norman Village Road Development Plan approved by the Town of Mooresville, NC.  The Timber Road Extension includes all areas that are outside of the Rail Crossing Project as defined herein, and includes a connection to U.S. Highway 21, a connection to Highway 115, and all associated improvements and supporting infrastructure related thereto.
	Expected Results: Full design and complete construction of the Timber Road Extension as defined and specified by the Development Agreement By and Between the Town of Mooresvile, North Carolina and Mooresville BTR Developer, LLC dated January 13, 2023.  Construction shall be complete and all funds expended by October 31, 2025. 
	Performance Measures: 1) Centralina will coordinate with the Town of Mooresville to review project documentation.2) Centralina will develop a subaward agreement with M Group Companies that meets all requirements outined by the Centralina Executive Board, Centralina legal counsel recommendations and any applicable laws and regulations. 3) Centralina Executive Board will review and approve the subaward agreement by no later than June 30, 2024.4) Centralina and M Group Companies will execute the subaward agreement within 30 days of the Centralina Executive Boards' approval.5) M Group will execute the scope of work in the subaward agreement, comply with all agreement terms and conditions, including fulfilling reporting requirements.6) Centralina will managing reimbursement or payment requests submitted by M Group Companies, compile require reports to Office of State Management and Budget and all other administrative or stakeholder engagement activities through the completion of the construction period. 
	If yes answer the following: 
	b Name of SubrecipientRow1: M Group Companies
	c Program NameRow1: Timber Road Extension
	d Amount to SubrecipientRow1: $14,852,425
	b Name of SubrecipientRow2: 
	c Program NameRow2: 
	d Amount to SubrecipientRow2: 
	b Name of SubrecipientRow3: 
	c Program NameRow3: 
	d Amount to SubrecipientRow3: 
	Date7_es_:signer:date: 4.1.24
	Date8_es_:signer:date: 12.1.25
	AMOUNT: $101,279
	Administration Expenses ex utilities telephone data: $46,296
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: 
	Other Expenses ex related charges not assigned above: $14,852,425
	undefined_4: $15,000,000
	Printed Name: 
	Title: 
	Signature5_es_:signer:signature: 
	Date9_es_:signer:date: 
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Off
	Budget Breakdown: Employee Expenses: Salary and fringe expenses for two positions: Grant and Contract Administrator and Executive Director Administrative Expenses:  Centralina NICRA rate is 46.2% applied to the $140,000 allowable administrative expense Other Expenses: Please see the attached budget breakdown for the Timber Road Extension construction provided by M Group Companies. 


